
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

________________________________________

)

BRIGHTON VILLAGE NOMINEE TRUST,
)

c/o SENTRY PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
)

CORP.,





)

)

Plaintiff,




)

)

v.





)



)

ZYMA MALYSHEV, ITA SCHEGOLEV, 

)

LIPA SMOLYAR, SEMYON CHARNEY, 

)

SHEILA DATZ, LEV UMANSKY, 


)

NIKOLAY VIRINE, LEV FILYURIN, 

)

LAZAR MERLIS, LORRAINE MOONEY, 
)

LYUBOV SCHMIDT, SEMYON SHUSTER, 
)

LEONID VANINOV, SOLOMON VIKTOR, and
)

NAUM MANDEL,




)

)

C.A. NO. 00-12311-GAO

Defendants and Third-Party Plaintiffs,
)

)

v.





)

AMENDED ANSWER AND   
)

COUNTERCLAIMS AND CLAIMS
MEL MARTINEZ, in his capacity as

)

AGAINST THIRD PARTY
SECRETARY OF THE UNITED STATES

)

DEFENDANT
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN
)

DEVELOPMENT,




)

 






)

Third-Party Defendant.


)

                                                                              
)

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

The Defendants, Zyma Malyshev, Ita Schegolev, Lipa Smolyar, Semyon Charney,

Sheila Datz, Lev Umansky, Nikolay Virine, Lev Filyurin, Lazar Merlis, Lorraine Mooney, Lyubov Schmidt, Semyon Shuster, Leonid Vaninov, Solomon Viktor, and Naum Mandel, 
(Athe Tenants@) demand a jury trial on all claims in this action triable by jury.


DENIAL OF LANDLORD'S CLAIMS

1.  The Tenants admit to occupying the premises located at 20, 24 and 28 Colborne Road, Brighton, MA, (Athe premises@) but deny that they occupy the premises unlawfully or against the right of the Plaintiff (Athe Landlord"), Brighton Village Nominee Trust (Herbert F. Gold, trustee), c/o Sentry Property Management Corp.  

FIRST DEFENSE: FAILURE TO PROPERLY TERMINATE TENANCY

2.  The Tenants= tenancies were not properly terminated by the Landlord prior to the commencement of this action.  

SECOND DEFENSE: NON‑COMPLIANCE WITH 

 



FEDERAL LAW AND/OR LEASE

3.  The tenancies involved here are subsidized under the Section 8 rental assistance program.  The Landlord did not give notice or follow the procedures required by federal statutes and regulations and/or the parties= lease before terminating the tenancies or bringing this action.  Strict compliance with these notice requirements is mandated by federal law and/or the parties= lease.  Therefore this Court does not have jurisdiction and this action must be dismissed.

4.  The Landlord does not have just cause to terminate the Section 8 tenancies as required by federal statute and regulations and the parties= lease.

5.  The Landlord may not evict the Tenants for Afail[ing] to accept the offer of a new lease at a higher rental rate@ because the Tenants= leases have been amended to reflect the higher rental rates and all necessary documents have been signed. 


THIRD DEFENSE: CONDITION OF THE PREMISES

6.  The tenancies in this action were terminated without the fault of the Tenants.

7.  The following non-exhaustive list of conditions have existed at some time during the course of the tenancies.  The Tenants are entitled to rent abatements because of conditions of disrepair in or around the premises which may endanger or materially impair their health, safety and well‑being.  Neither the Tenants nor anyone in their households caused these problems, and all necessary repairs could be made without the Tenants leaving the premises.  The Landlord knew or should have known about these conditions; however, it did not timely repair them:

a.  Heating system in need of repair;

b.  Windows in need of repair or replacement;

c.   Leaking ceiling;

d.  Waterstain on ceilings and\or walls; 

e.   Kitchen cabinets in need of repair or replacement; and

f.   Floors in need of repair or replacement.

8.   Therefore under G.L. c. 239, ' 8A and the common law of implied warranty of habitability, the Landlord may not evict the Tenants.


FOURTH DEFENSE: FAILURE TO REASONABLY ACCOMMODATE 


TENANTS AND DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY

9.  The Landlord has failed to reasonably accommodate the Tenants on the basis of disability in violation of one or more state and/or federal anti-discrimination laws.  These anti-discrimination laws include but are not necessarily limited to the state anti-discrimination statute (M.G.L. c. 151B), the federal and state constitution, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Fair Housing Act, as amended, and/or the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

10.  As a matter of reasonable accommodation, the Landlord is required to forbear from eviction to enable the disabled Tenants to maintain their tenancies, and/or to continue the Tenants= tenancies at a subsidy amount HUD will allow and a rent the Tenants can afford to pay without having to forego food, medicine and medical care that will cause their disabilities to worsen.  The Landlord has refused to so accommodate.

11.  By maintaining as a matter of upkeep and repair, and provision of appliances to, the Tenants= units, and the units of other disabled, Section 8 tenants, differently and worse than the market rate units in the Brighton Village development, which are occupied disproportionately by non-disabled tenants, the Landlord has discriminated against the Tenants on the basis of disability.
12.  Therefore, under G.L. c. 239 ' 8A and/or state and/or federal anti-discrimination law, the Tenants should be awarded possession of the premises..

FIFTH DEFENSE: VIOLATIONS OF MASSACHUSETTS ANTI-DISCRIMINATION ACT

13.  By refusing until January 2001 to continue the Tenants= tenancies with the federal Section 8 subsidy, the Landlord violated the Tenants= rights under G.L. c. 151B, '4(10) as the Landlord's refusal constitutes discrimination based on source of income or the requirements of the Section 8 housing subsidy program.  

14.  By maintaining, as a matter of upkeep and repair, and provision of appliances to, the Tenants= units differently and worse than the market rate units in the Brighton Village development, the Landlord violated the Tenants= rights under G.L. c. 151B, '4(10) as the Landlord's differential maintenance, repair, and renovation treatment constitutes discrimination based on source of income and receipt of rental assistance.

15.  Therefore, under G.L. c. 151B, '4(10), the Landlord must continue or renew the Section 8 leases at reasonable rents that do not unreasonably burden the Tenants, comply with all conditions of the rental assistance program, and may not evict the Tenants so long as the Tenants wish to remain at the Brighton Village development and remain in compliance with the other obligations of their leases. 


SIXTH DEFENSE: VIOLATION OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

16.   In 1976, HUD acquired Brighton Village, a formerly subsidized development through a foreclosure sale for $1,600,000.00.  In 1980, the Landlord purchased Brighton Village from HUD for $552,600.00.  HUD took a note, secured by a 40-year HUD-held purchase money mortgage, and further provided the Landlord a fifteen-year, project-based Section 8 contract for the development, pursuant to Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937.  The Section 8 contract provided that tenants would pay 30 percent of their incomes in rent and the Landlord would receive a rental subsidy for each tenant based upon the terms of the contract.  In connection with the purchase and HUD-held mortgage of the property, the Landlord executed a note and mortgage with a 40-year term, and a regulatory agreement with HUD (Amortgage documents@).  

17.  The regulatory agreement provided that the Landlord was required to renew the project-based Section 8 contract for so long as the mortgage covering the development was insured or held by HUD.  Because the regulatory agreement requirements remained effective only so long as HUD held the mortgage, prepayment of the mortgage would dissolve the requirement of renewal of the project-based Section 8 contract.  The mortgage note provided that Landlord could not prepay the mortgage in whole or in part without the prior written approval of HUD.  In or around 1986, the Landlord sought and obtained the approval of HUD to prepay the mortgage and be released from the obligations of the mortgage documents, including the regulatory agreement.

18.  Upon the expiration of the fifteen-year project-based Section 8 contract in 1995, the Landlord refused to renew the contract, and existing low-income tenants were given tenant-based Section 8 vouchers.  Since that time, the Landlord has increased tenant rents each year, including the rent of the Defendant Tenants, so that tenants were paying far in excess of 30 percent of their incomes in rent, and far in excess of the amount they would be required to pay under the terms of the project-based Section 8 contract.

19.  Section 250(a) of the National Housing Act, 12 U.S.C. ' 1715z-15(a), provides that HUD Ashall not accept@ prepayment of a mortgage on multifamily housing unless HUD has determined that the project is no longer meeting a need for rental housing for lower income families in the area, unless HUD has determined that the tenants have been notified of the owner=s request for prepayment, and unless HUD has provided tenants with an opportunity to comment on the owner=s request and taken such comments into consideration.

20.  Upon information and belief, HUD approved prepayment of the mortgage at Brighton Village without fulfilling any of the requirements of Section 250(a).  Accordingly, HUD=s approval of the prepayment was unlawful, void and of no effect, and the Landlord is not released from its obligations under the mortgage documents to maintain Section 8 assistance at the development to benefit low-income families, including the Tenants.  The Landlord is therefore barred from pursuing an eviction, which seeks to evict the Tenants because they cannot afford to pay the rent the Landlord seeks to charge an amount in excess of the 30 percent of the Tenants= incomes.

SEVENTH DEFENSE: RELIEF FROM FORFEITURE

21.  The Tenants state on the facts of this case that they may be granted relief from the forfeiture of their tenancies in accord with the principle recognized in Eno Systems, Inc. v. Eno, 311 Mass. 334, 41 N.E.2d 17 (1942), and request that this Court exercise its jurisdiction accordingly upon such conditions it deems just and equitable.


EIGHTH DEFENSE: CLAIMS AGAINST LANDLORD

22.  The Tenants have claims against the Landlord arising out of their tenancies.  These include:

a.  
Breach of warranty;

b.  
Breach of quiet enjoyment;

c.  
Failure to reasonably accommodate and discrimination on the basis of disability; 

e.    
Discrimination on the basis of receipt of rental assistance; and

f.  
Unfair and deceptive practices.

23.  Therefore, under G.L. c. 239, ' 8A, the Landlord cannot evict the Tenants.


COUNTERCLAIMS AGAINST PLAINTIFF
24.  The Tenants assert by way of counterclaim against the Landlord pursuant to G.L. c. 239, ' 8A, Rule 5 of the Uniform Summary Process Rules and Mass.R.Civ.P. 13(b) the following counterclaims as an affirmative defense to the Landlord's claim for possession and for his own damages.


FIRST COUNTERCLAIM: BREACH OF WARRANTY

25.  The Landlord has expressly or impliedly warranted to provide and keep the premises in good repair, in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, and in all other respects fit for habitation.  Because of the acts described more fully in DEFENSE: CONDITION OF PREMISES the Landlord has breached the implied warranty of habitability.

26.  As a result of the Landlord's breach of warranties, the Tenants suffered damages in the amount of the difference between the fair market value of the premises in good repair and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and the value of the premises in disrepair and any damages to the Tenants which are the consequences of the Landlord's breach of warranties.


SECOND COUNTERCLAIM: INTERFERENCE WITH 


QUIET ENJOYMENT OF THE PREMISES

27.  The Landlord directly or indirectly interfered with the Tenants= quiet enjoyment of the premises by:

a  Failing to provide and maintain the premises in compliance with applicable law and the requirements of the Section 8 subsidy program; and

b. Commencing and pursuing eviction proceedings without necessity or just cause.  

28.  As a result, the Tenants claim the greater of actual damages, or three months' rent, calculated at the market rate, appropriate injunctive relief, plus costs of this action and reasonable attorney's fees.

THIRD COUNTERCLAIM: FAILURE TO REASONABLY ACCOMMODATE TENANTS AND DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY

29.  The Landlord has failed to reasonably accommodate the Tenants on the basis of disability in violation of one or more state and/or federal anti-discrimination laws.  These anti-discrimination laws include but are not necessarily limited to the state anti-discrimination statute (G.L. c. 151B), the federal and state constitution, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, and/or the Americans With Disabilities Act.

30.  As a matter of reasonable accommodation, the Landlord is required to forbear from eviction to enable the disabled Tenants to maintain their tenancies, and/or to continue the Tenants= tenancies at a subsidy amount HUD will allow and a rent the Tenants can afford to pay without having to forego food, medicine and medical care that will cause their disability to worsen.  The Landlord has refused to so accommodate.

31.   By maintaining as a matter of upkeep and repair, and provision of appliances to, the Tenants= units, and the units of other disabled, Section 8 tenants, differently and worse than the market rate units in the Brighton Village development, which are occupied disproportionately by non-disabled tenants, the Landlord has discriminated against the Tenants on the basis of disability.
32.  Therefore, the Tenants are entitled to damages, attorneys' fees, and injunctive relief ordering the Landlord to accommodate the Tenants based on disability as required by law, including, so long as the Tenants wish to remain at the Brighton Village development, accepting a rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants based on a reasonable rent that does not unreasonably burden the Tenants, complying with all conditions required by the rental assistance program, and correcting all conditions so that the Tenants= apartments are comparable to unassisted private market units in the development.

FOURTH COUNTERCLAIM: VIOLATIONS OF MASSACHUSETTS 

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION ACT

33.  By refusing, until January 2001, to continue the Tenants= tenancies with the federal '8 subsidy, the Landlord violated the Tenants= rights under G.L. c. 151B, '4(10) as the Landlord's refusal constitutes discrimination based on source of income or the requirements of the '8 housing subsidy program.  

34.  By maintaining as a matter of upkeep and repair the Tenants= units differently and worse than the market rate units in the Brighton Village development, the Landlord violated the Tenants= rights under G.L. c. 151B, '4(10) as the Landlord's differential maintenance, repair, and renovation treatment constitutes discrimination based on source of income and receipt of rental assistance.

35.  Therefore under G.L. c. 151B, '4(10), the Landlord must be ordered not to evict the Tenants and to continue or renew the '8 lease with the Tenants at a reasonable rent that does not unreasonably burden the Tenants, to comply with all conditions required by the rental assistance program, and the Landlord must correct all conditions so that the Tenants= apartments are comparable to unassisted private market units in the development.   The Tenants are entitled to damages and attorneys fees for the Landlord=s violations of G.L. c. 151B, ' 4(10).

FIFTH COUNTERCLAIM: UNFAIR AND DECEPTIVE PRACTICES

36.  The Landlord is in the trade or business of renting residential housing and has, throughout these tenancies, engaged in unfair and deceptive practices within the meaning of G.L. c. 93A and the Attorney General's regulations published to enforce this law. These unfair and deceptive practices listed below have included but are not necessarily limited to the actions and failures to act set out above in the Answer and in all the Counterclaims stated above.

a.  The Landlord failed to comply with the State Sanitary Code or any other law applicable to the conditions of a dwelling unit in violation of 940 C.M.R. 3.17(1) (i);

b.  The Landlord breached the implied warranty of habitability in violation of 940 C.M.R 3.08(2);

c.  The Landlord failed to give notices of termination as required by the parties' leases and/or applicable regulations in violation of 940 C.M.R. 3.16;

d.  The Landlord failed to reasonably accommodate the Tenants= disabilities and has discriminated against the Tenants on the basis of disability in violation of one or more state and/or federal anti-discrimination laws;

e.  The Landlord discriminated against the Tenants on the basis of source of income and receipt of rental assistance;

f.  The Landlord is imposing an unreasonble rule regarding the use of air conditioners and charging the Tenants an unfair and unconscionable fee to use air conditioners in their units.

37.  All of the Landlord's unfair and deceptive practices were willful and knowing within the meaning of G.L. c. 93A.  Therefore, the Tenants claim three, but not less than two, times all damages awarded or that could be awarded pursuant to G.L. c. 93A, along with costs and attorney's fees.

38.  This pleading constitutes a demand for relief pursuant to G.L. 93A.  To the extent that the Landlord does not respond with a reasonable offer of settlement within thirty days, the Tenants claim three, but not less than two, times all damages awarded or that could be awarded pursuant to G.L. c. 93A, along with costs and attorney's fees.  

CLAIMS AGAINST THIRD PARTY DEFENDANT MEL MARTINEZ
39.  Defendant MEL MARTINEZ is Secretary of the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (AHUD@) and, as such, is charged with the administration and enforcement of all functions, powers and duties of HUD, including those relating to the Section 8 program and federal fair housing laws and provisions.

40.  Defendant HUD was named as a third party defendant pursuant to Uniform Summary Process Rule 1 and Mass.R.Civ.P.  14, 19, and/or 20.  Pursuant to Mass.R.Civ.P 19(a)(1), HUD is a necessary party for just adjudication because in the HUD=s absence complete relief cannot be accorded.   In the alternative, HUD should be joined as an appropriate party pursuant to Rule 20(a) as Defendants= claims against HUD arise out of the same transaction or occurrence, or series or transactions or occurrences, as Defendants= claims against Plaintiff and common questions of fact and law will arise.  In November 2000, HUD removed this action to Federal District Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C.  ' 1441 and 1442(a)(1).  

41.  This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to inter alia  28 U.S.C. ' 1442(a), 28 U.S.C. ' 1331, 28 U.S.C. ' 1343(a)(3), and 42 U.S.C. '3613. 


FACTS REGARDING CLAIMS AGAINST THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT
42.   In 1976, HUD acquired Brighton Village, a formerly subsidized development, through a foreclosure sale for $1,600,000.  In 1980, the Landlord purchased Brighton Village from HUD for $552,600.  HUD took a note, secured by a 40-year HUD-held purchase money mortgage, and further provided the Landlord a fifteen-year, project-based Section 8 contract for the development, pursuant to Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937.  The Section 8 contract provided that tenants would pay 30 percent of their incomes in rent and the Landlord would receive a rental subsidy for each tenant based upon the terms of the contract.  In connection with the purchase and HUD-held mortgage of the property, the Landlord executed a note and mortgage with a 40-year term, and a regulatory agreement with HUD (Amortgage documents@).  

43.  The regulatory agreement provided that the Landlord was required to renew the project-based Section 8 contract for so long as the mortgage covering the development was insured or held by HUD.  Because the regulatory agreement requirements remained effective only so long as HUD held the mortgage, prepayment of the mortgage would dissolve the requirement of renewal of the project-based Section 8 contract.  The mortgage note provided that Landlord could not prepay the mortgage in whole or in part without the prior written approval of HUD.  In or around 1986, the Landlord sought and obtained the approval of HUD to prepay the mortgage and be released from the obligations of the mortgage documents, including the regulatory agreement.

44.  Section 250(a) of the National Housing Act, 12 U.S.C. ' 1715z-15(a), provides that HUD Ashall not accept@ prepayment of a mortgage on multifamily housing unless HUD has determined that the project is no longer meeting a need for rental housing for lower income families in the area, unless HUD has determined that the tenants have been notified of the owner=s request for prepayment, and unless HUD has provided tenants with an opportunity to comment on the owner=s request and taken such comments into consideration.  Upon information and belief, HUD approved prepayment of the mortgage at Brighton Village without fulfilling any of the requirements of Section 250(a). 

45.  When the initial fifteen-year term of the Section 8 contract drew close to expiring in 1995, the Landlord indicated to HUD that it did not plan to renew the contract because the rents were significantly below market levels.  HUD offered the Landlord a renewal contract at rents far below market rents and said it would consider an increase in rents only if the Landlord submitted documentation supporting a need for repairs, rehabilitation, or under-funded reserves, and then rents would be capped by existing Section 8 AFair Market Rents.@  The Landlord refused to renew the contract.  

46.  At the time of the expiration of the Section 8 project-based contract, 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f(c) required HUD to consider any additional actions it could take to avoid the Landlord=s termination of the Section 8 contract and, in particular, to ensure proper adjustment of contract rents to levels of similar unassisted units in the market area.   42 U.S.C. ' 1437f(c)(9) & (c)(2) (1994).  The statute also required HUD to issue a written finding stating the actions it had considered or taken to avoid the termination.  Upon information and belief, HUD failed to comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f when the Landlord terminated the Section 8 project-based contract.

47.  Following termination of the Section 8 project-based contract, existing low-income tenants were given tenant-based Section 8 vouchers and were told that their rents would not increase.  Since that time, however, the Landlord has increased the Tenants= rents each year, so that Tenants were paying far in excess of 30 percent of their incomes in rent, and far in excess of the amount they would have been required to pay under the terms of the project-based Section 8 contract.

48.  When their rents became unaffordable, the Tenants made repeated requests to HUD under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. ' 794, et. seq., and the Fair Housing Act as amended, 42 U.S.C. ' 3601, et. seq., to increase the voucher payment level to allow them to remain in their homes as a reasonable accommodation based on their individual disabilities.  HUD recognized the disabled Tenants= need for reasonable accommodation, but refused to provide the full increase the Tenants needed to cover the rent, in violation of its obligation to provide a reasonable accommodation under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. ' 794, et. seq., and the Fair Housing Act as amended, 42 U.S.C. ' 3601, et. seq.  

49.   Nothing in the federal statute prohibited HUD from providing a subsidy amount to meet the Landlord=s requested rent and/or authorizing a payment standard of more than 120% of the Fair Market Rent (FMR) and/or utilizing an FMR based on 50th percentile of area rents.

50.  On December 27, 2000, Congress enacted legislation, 106 Pub. L. 569, Tit. IX, ' 902, 114 Stat. 2944, that extended eligibility for special Aenhanced vouchers@ retroactively back to fiscal year 1994.  As a result, the Tenants qualified for enhanced vouchers which will meet rents up to reasonable market rates.

51.   Enhanced vouchers, however, do not provide the Tenants with the same level of security as the Section 8 project-based subsidy contract would have provided if it had not been terminated.  Under the rules of the enhanced voucher program, the Tenants may risk eviction over time for reasons including but not limited to a reduction or increase in household size, failure of the unit to pass housing quality inspections, and decreases in income insufficient to trigger a reduction in their rent share.  If the enhanced voucher program, a relatively new program, is eliminated in the future, the Tenants would again risk eviction due to rising rents.  Security in their homes is of paramount importance to the elderly, disabled, low-income Tenants. 
52.  Since at least 1980, the Brighton Village development has met and continues to meet a critical need for rental housing for lower income families in Boston.  Boston has a vacancy rate of less than one percent, and between 30 to over 50 percent of tenant-based vouchers issued are returned as unusable in the present market. 

53.  The Tenants receive fixed incomes on which they rely for food, medicine, supplemental costs of medical care and such essentials as transportation to medical care.  Diversion of the Tenants= limited incomes to pay in excess of 30 percent of their incomes, and the emotional and physical stress caused by this diversion of income, is likely to exacerbate the Tenants= disability and impair their health.

54.  The Tenants, and other low-income tenants at Brighton Village, would be severely harmed if they are either evicted from their homes or forced to pay in excess of 30 percent of their incomes in rent.   The Tenants are disabled and handicapped within the meaning of fair housing laws. Their homes are located close to necessary medical providers and significant community and family support systems needed to manage their disabilities.  These conditions would be difficult, if not impossible, to replicate elsewhere.  Due to their age and disabilities, the Tenants are not able to actively engage in housing search. 

CAUSES OF ACTION AGAINST THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT
FIRST CLAIM:  VIOLATION OF FAIR HOUSING LAWS 

AND THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT
55.   HUD=s refusal to provide the Tenants with the protections which they would have had absent HUD=s illegal conduct in order to ensure their continued ability to live in their apartments paying no more than 30 percent of their incomes in rent when such action is likely to exacerbate their disabilities and impair their health, constitutes an unlawful failure to reasonably accommodate the Tenants= disabilities and discrimination on the basis of disability against the Tenants in violation of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. ' 794, et. seq., the Fair Housing Act as amended, 42 U.S.C. ' 3601, et. seq., and Executive Order 11063, and constitutes a failure to affirmatively further fair housing, as required by the Fair Housing Act, Section 3608(e)(5), and Executive Order 11063.

56.   HUD=s refusal to approve an increased rental subsidy for the Tenants prior to January 2001 when such action caused them to divert income from paying for necessities and likely exacerbated their disability and impaired their health, constituted an unlawful failure to reasonably accommodate the Tenants= disability and discrimination on the basis of disability against the Tenants in violation of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. ' 794, et. seq., the Fair Housing Act as amended, 42 U.S.C. ' 3601, et. seq., and Executive Order 11063, and constituted a failure to affirmatively further fair housing, as required by the Fair Housing Act, Section 3608(e)(5), and Executive Order 11063.

57.  Tenants are thus entitled pursuant to 12 U.S.C. '1702, the Administrative Procedures Act and the Fair Housing laws, to declaratory, injunctive and other appropriate relief requiring HUD to reasonably accommodate their disabilities, to cease discriminating against them on the basis of disability, and to affirmatively further fair housing at Brighton Village, specifically by providing the Tenants with the protections which they would have had absent HUD=s illegal conduct in order to ensure their continued ability to live in their apartments paying no more than thirty percent of their incomes in rent, and to refund the rent the Tenants overpaid above thirty percent of their incomes as a result of HUD=s violations of the Fair Housing laws.

SECOND CLAIM:  VIOLATION OF THE NATIONAL HOUSING ACT AND THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT
58.  HUD=s failure to comply with any of the provisions of Section 250(a) of the National Housing Act in approving prepayment of the purchase money mortgage at Brighton Village was arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion and contrary to law.  

59.  HUD=s failure to take into account and act consistently with the national housing goals set forth in 42 U.S.C.  ' 1441, 12 U.S.C.  ' 1701t and 42 U.S.C. ' 1441a in approving the prepayment of the purchase money mortgage at Brighton Village was arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion and contrary to law.  

60.  The Tenants and other low-income tenants at Brighton Village have been severely injured by HUD=s failure to comply with Section 250(a), failure to take into consideration the national housing goals in approving prepayment of the purchase money mortgage, and failure to require the maintenance of Brighton Village as low-income housing.

61.  The Tenants are entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief under the Administrative Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. ' 1702 and other provisions of law, finding to be unlawful HUD=s failure to comply with Section 250(a) and failure to take into consideration the national housing goals in approving prepayment of the purchase money mortgage, and requiring HUD to ensure the Tenants= continued ability to live at Brighton Village paying 30 percent of their incomes in rent with all the protections that they would have had, if HUD had not violated the statute, by requiring HUD:

a) to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants= households based on comparable market rents, so that the Tenants= households do not have to pay rent of more than 30% of their income, as adjusted under the Section 8 rules;

b) to adjust the Tenants= portion of the rent so that the Tenants continue to pay no more than 30% of their adjusted incomes in rent, if the Tenants= incomes decrease in any amount;

c) to permit the Tenants to remain in their apartments with full rental assistance, until appropriately-sized units to which the Tenants can move taking into account their disability become available in Brighton Village, if the Tenants= households= apartments become underutilized or overcrowded;

d) to continue to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants until the Tenants have relocated to alternative housing or the conditions are corrected, if the Landlord fails to comply with the requirements of the Tenants= rental assistance, including failing to correct bad conditions;

e) to reimburse the Tenants for the amount of rent that they overpaid above thirty percent of their adjusted incomes since the project-based Section 8 contract was terminated;

f) to take any other action necessary to assure that the Tenants have all the rights and protections they would have had, if HUD had not violated the statute; and
g) to provide all of the previously listed protections to any remaining members of the Tenants= households should the heads of the household no longer be in residence.

THIRD CLAIM:  VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f AND THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT
62. HUD=s failure to comply with any of the provisions of 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f when the Landlord terminated the Section 8 project-based contract at Brighton Village was arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion and contrary to law.  

63.  The Tenants and other low-income tenants at Brighton Village have been severely injured by HUD=s failure to comply with 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f, and failure to take additional actions it could have taken to avoid the termination of the project-based Section 8 contract.

64.  The Tenants are entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief under the Administrative Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. ' 1702 and other provisions of law, finding HUD=s failure to comply with 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f to be unlawful, and requiring HUD to ensure the Tenants= continued ability to live at Brighton Village paying 30 percent of their incomes in rent with all the protections that they would have had, if HUD had not violated the statute, by requiring HUD:

a) to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants= households based on comparable market rents, so that the Tenants= households do not have to pay rent of more than 30% of their incomes, as adjusted under the Section 8 rules;

b) to adjust the Tenants= portions of the rent so that the Tenants continue to pay no more than 30% of their adjusted incomes in rent, if the Tenants= incomes decrease in any amount;

c) to permit the Tenants to remain in their apartments with full rental assistance, until appropriately-sized units to which the Tenants can move taking into account their disability become available in Brighton Village, if the Tenants= households= apartments become underutilized or overcrowded;

d) to continue to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants until the Tenants have relocated to alternative housing or the conditions are corrected, if the Landlord fails to comply with the requirements of the Tenants= rental assistance, including failing to correct bad conditions;

e) to reimburse the Tenants for the amount of rent that they overpaid above thirty percent of their adjusted incomes since the project-based Section 8 contract was terminated;

f) to take any other action necessary to assure that the Tenants have all the rights and protections they would have had, if HUD had not violated the statute; and

g) to provide all of the previously listed protections to any remaining members of the Tenants= households should the heads of the household no longer be in residence.

WHEREFORE, the Tenants requests that the Court:

1.  Enter judgment for possession of the leased premises for the Tenants;

2.  Require the Landlord to repair any defective or substandard conditions that are found to exist in the Tenants= apartments at the time of trial, as provided by G.L. c. 239, ' 8A (6th paragraph);

3.  On the COUNTERCLAIM: BREACH OF WARRANTY award the Tenants damages based on the nature, duration, and seriousness of the defects and equal to the difference between the value of the use and enjoyment of the premises as warranted to be habitable and the value of the use and enjoyment of the premises in their defective condition, from the commencement of the tenancies to the present;

4.  On the COUNTERCLAIM: BREACH OF QUIET ENJOYMENT award the Tenants the greater of actual damages or three months rent, calculated at the market rate, plus costs of this action and reasonable attorney's fees, and order appropriate injunctive relief;

5.  On the COUNTERCLAIM: FAILURE TO REASONABLY ACCOMMODATE AND DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY award the Tenants damages, injunctive relief, and attorneys= fees as provided for under applicable law;

6.  On the COUNTERCLAIM: VIOLATION OF MASSACHUSETTS ANTI-DISCRIMINATION ACT order the Landlord to continue or renew the Section 8 lease with the Tenants at a reasonable rent that does not unreasonably burden the Tenants and award applicable damages and attorney=s fees;

7.  On the COUNTERCLAIM: UNFAIR AND DECEPTIVE PRACTICES award the Tenants damages for the Landlord's violations of G.L. c. 93A, ' 2, and regulations promulgated thereunder, plus reasonable attorney's fees;
8.  On the CLAIM: VIOLATION OF THE FAIR HOUSING LAWS AND THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT against Third Party Defendant HUD award the Tenants declaratory relief, finding HUD=s failure to comply with the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,  the Fair Housing Act as amended, and Executive Order 11063 to be unlawful, and award the Tenants injunctive relief as to Defendant HUD=s acts and failures to act;

9.  On the CLAIM: VIOLATION OF THE NATIONAL HOUSING ACT AND THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT against the Third Party Defendant HUD award the Tenants declaratory and injunctive relief as to Defendant HUD=s acts and failures to act, finding HUD=s failure to comply with 12 U.S.C. ' 1715z-15 and to act in accordance with the national housing goals to be unlawful, and requiring HUD:

a) to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants= households based on comparable market rents, so that the Tenants= households do not have to pay rent of more than 30% of their income, as adjusted under the Section 8 rules;

b) to adjust the Tenant=s portion of the rent so that the Tenants continues to pay no more than 30% of their adjusted incomes in rent, should the Tenants= incomes decrease in any amount;

c) to permit the Tenants to remain in their apartments with full rental assistance, until appropriately-sized units to which the Tenants can move taking into account their disabilities become available in Brighton Village, should the Tenants= households= apartment become underutilized or overcrowded;

d) to continue to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants until the Tenants have relocated to alternative housing or the conditions are corrected, should the Landlord fail to comply with the requirements of the Tenants= rental assistance, including failing to correct bad conditions;

e) to reimburse the Tenants for the amount of rent that they overpaid above thirty percent of their adjusted incomes since the project-based Section 8 contract was terminated;

f) to take any other action necessary to assure that the Tenants have all the rights and protections they would have had, if HUD had not violated the statute; and

g) to provide all of the previously listed protections to any remaining members of the Tenants= households should the heads of the households no longer be in residence.

10.  On the CLAIM:  VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f AND THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT  against the Third Party Defendant HUD award the Tenants declaratory and injunctive relief as to Defendant HUD=s acts and failures to act, finding HUD=s failure to comply with 42 U.S.C. ' 1437f to be unlawful and requiring HUD:

a) to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants= households based on comparable market rents, so that the Tenants= households do not have to pay rent of more than 30% of their incomes, as adjusted under the Section 8 rules;

b) to adjust the Tenants= portions of the rent so that the Tenants continue to pay no more than 30% of their adjusted incomes in rent, should the Tenants= incomes decrease in any amount;

c) to permit the Tenants to remain in their apartments with full rental assistance, until appropriately-sized units to which the Tenants can move taking into account their disability become available in Brighton Village, should the Tenants= households= apartment become underutilized or overcrowded;

d) to continue to provide rental assistance on behalf of the Tenants until the Tenants have relocated to alternative housing or the conditions are corrected, should the Landlord fail to comply with the requirements of the Tenants= rental assistance, including failing to correct bad conditions;

e) to reimburse the Tenants for the amount of rent that they overpaid above thirty percent of their adjusted incomes since the project-based Section 8 contract was terminated;

f) to take any other action necessary to assure that the Tenants have all the rights and protections they would have had, if HUD had not violated the statute; and

g) to provide all of the previously listed protections to any remaining members of the Tenants= households should the heads of the household no longer be in residence.
11.  Award attorney=s fees against HUD under the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. ' 3601, et. seq. and Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. ' 2412; and

12.  Order such relief as the Court deems just and proper.

ZYMA MALYSHEV, et al.,

Defendants/Third Party Plaintiffs,

By their attorneys,

I hereby certify that a
______________________________

true copy of the above
Ann Jochnick    

document was served upon
BBO # 642674

the Plaintiff's Attorney
Barbara Zimbel

and the Third Party Defendant=s Attorney
BBO # 540250

by hand, by mail, by facsimile 
Greater Boston Legal Services

by agreement on
197 Friend Street

Boston, MA  02114

_____________________.
617‑603‑1656; 617-603-1649

617‑371‑1222 (fax)

________________________________


Dated: _____________________ 
